
NEAH-KAH-NIE SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 56 

Regular Board Meeting 6:00 PM 

April 25, 2022 

New DO Board Room, and Virtual 

504 N. Third Ave. 

Rockaway Beach, OR 97136 

 

 

BUDGET COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

Renae Scalabrin   Kristen Coyle 

Landon Myers, absent   Lisa Hooley, virtually 

Kari Fleisher    JoDee Ridderbusch, absent 

Mike Wantland    Damian Laviolette 

Sandra Tyrer    Tamara Mautner, virtually    

Michele Aeder, virtually   Heidi Luquette 

Carol Mahoney    Angelica Saucedo 

 

OFFICIAL MINUTES 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

Sandy Tyrer, Chairman called to order the Budget Committee Meeting at 6:02 p.m.  Ms. Tyrer welcomed staff and 

patrons of the district.  All present stood for the flag salute. 

 

REVIEW ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF BUDGET COMMITTEE, Mark Sybouts 

Mr. Sybouts presented the roles and responsibilities of the budget committee. 

 Who is on the committee –equal number of board members and members of the community 

 Election of Presiding officer 

 Quorum is required – minimum of 6 members 

 Hears the budget message 

 Discuss the budget 

 Receive public comment 

 Approve the budget 

 Levy the tax 

 

ELECTION OF PRESIDING OFFICER, Sandy Tyrer 

Ms. Tyrer called for nomination of the presiding officer.  Ms. Aeder nominated Carol Mahoney as the presiding officer; 

Ms. Mahoney declined the nomination and nominated Ms. Tyrer as the presiding officer.  At Ms. Sellars request Ms. 

Tyrer did a roll call vote for those who are attending the meeting virtually.  All those online and in person voted in favor of 

Ms. Tyrer as the presiding office. 

 

DESIGNATION OF SECRETARY 

Ms. Tyrer designated Ms. Sellars as the secretary. 

 

BUDGET MESSAGE, Paul Erlebach 

Mr. Erlebach delivered the budget message, which is attached to these minutes.  He reviewed revenue, budget 

increases/decreases, Student Investment Act (SIA) funds, Preschool Promise, Measure 98 grant, Career Technical grant, 

ESSER funds, Superintendent’s Budget Summary Statement, and the Capital Improvement Plan. Mr. Erlebach asked if 

there were any questions from the budget committee.  Mr. Laviolette asked if the ending fund balance is decreasing due 

to a decrease in state timber revenue or district projects.  Mr. Sybouts stated that it is about fifty percent of each.  Mr. 

Laviolette also stated that it seems that the district receives most of the revenue from property tax and it seems that the 

district views this as a negative, rather than a positive.  Mr. Erlebach stated that it a big positive. Mr. Laviolette also asked 

to have the budget revision explained to him.  Mr. Sybouts stated that the budget committee has the ability to make 

revisions to the budget document which requires a majority vote by the committee. 

 

BUDGET DOCUMENT OVERVIEW, Mark Sybouts 

Mr. Sybouts reviewed the budget document.  Total revenue is going down by about $1.1 million dollars.  The proposed 

budget for all funds is $35,952,090.  He then reviewed the general fund and the other various funds.  Noting various 



Neah-Kah-Nie School District 
Budget Committee Meeting 
April 25, 2022 
Page 2 
 

 

changes in staffing and fund allocations. 

 

Nehalem Elementary School 

Ms. Fleisher asked about library books and where those are budgeted.  Mr. Sybouts stated that for the elementary 

schools library books are paid for out of the Ann Parks Estate funds.  Mr. Sybouts stated that there is just under $20,000 

for each building left in that fund. 

 

He went on to Nehalem Elementary School.  Mr. Sybouts stated that the teaching staff is going down by .5 FTE.  Ms. 

Scalabrin asked about the reduction of the two elementary teachers.  Mr. Erlebach stated that the board agreed to 

reduce two teachers to afford the increases the district was looking at. Ms. Luquette stated that she noticed that in the 

elementary schools there was a budget for TAG, but not at the middle school.  Ms. Dilbeck stated that they do have a 

TAG program, but it is incorporated in the regular classroom and is funded out of the office of the principal. 

 

Middle School 

The FTE at the middle school has increased due to the addition of a full-time Art teacher. The Basic Skills program is also 

being increased due to the fact that we have an increase in students in that program. 

 

He noted the budget for library books at the middle school. 

 

High School 

Mr. Erlebach shared some attendance data at the high school. Ms. Buckmaster stated that the high school enrollment is 

240 this year and will go up the 276 next year. 

 

We do have a reduction in licensed salaries in extracurricular due to the addition of the assistant principal/athletic director 

has been moved to the office of the principal.  Mr. Laviolette stated that the assistant principal/athletic director was a new 

position.  Mr. Erlebach stated that we had an assistant and then we eliminated that position and now we are bringing it 

back. 

 

Mr. Sybouts also stated that the second counselor at the high school is not reflected in the high school budget, but is 

reflected under the state and local grants as well as the middle school and high school family resource coordinator. 

 

District Office 

Mr. Sybouts mentioned the additions at the district office, such as the addition of a secretary that is split three ways 

(business office, office of the superintendent and special education secretary) and the addition of the sub-finding service.   

He explained that we pay twenty-six percent of the substitute cost, but we also pay for services up front and then receive 

a refund for the amount of services that we do not use. 

 

Ms. Hooley asked why the decision was made to go with a sub-finding service?  Mr. Sybouts shared the following 

considerations when the decision was made.. 

 Length of commitment from previous sub caller 

 Greater substitute pool 

 PERS costs – ESS does not have to pay PERS costs, so that is a savings to the district.  Mr. Sybouts stated that 

he had to do a cost analysis to present to the Board, and it did save the district money. 

 

There has been a reduction in custodial costs at the district office due to moving the preschool out to the buildings. 

 

Ms. Hooley asked about the $1 million housing project.  Ms. Tyrer stated that it would fall under the Budget Committee 

Review and Discussion. 

 

Federal Projects 

Mr. Sybouts reviewed the Federal Projects funds which include ESSER, Title funds, IDEA, Remediation which is part of 

the ESSER grant, and Youth Transition. 



Neah-Kah-Nie School District 
Budget Committee Meeting 
April 25, 2022 
Page 3 
 

 

State and Local Grants 

The SIA and Measure 98 grants are reflected here. Funds for textbook adoptions, PreK programs and Summer 

Enrichment are shown here as well.   

 

Building Maintenance 

Mr. Sybouts stated that there is a combination of funds covering the renovation of the Construction Trades classroom and 

this is where $130,000 is coming from. 

 

Maintenance Fund 

We are transferring in $400,000 again this year. 

 

Food Service Program 

For the last two years, the amount we have received in federal fund to cover costs have increased, most everyone has 

been receiving free meals during the pandemic, but next year that goes away.  Parents will need to qualify for free or 

reduced meals again starting in the fall of 2022. 

 

Buildings and Facilities 

Mr. Sybouts stated that this is the account where the excess cost for the HVAC system and the duplex costs are reflected 

in this fund. 

 

Ms. Scalabrin asked about the bond issue being paid off in 2025, does that mean that we would no longer have that $1.4 

million dollars in the budget.  Mr. Sybouts stated that is correct. 

 

BUDGET COMMITTEE REVIEW AND DISCUSSION, Budget Committee 

Mr. Erlebach responded to Ms. Hooley’s question about the Duplex plan.  He shared that the District would like to build a 

duplex on the largest of the three lots that the District owns.  The idea came about due to the difficulty for new employees 

to obtain housing and as an incentive to encourage new teachers to come to the district.  The original bid that we 

received was over $1.6 million dollars. His recommendation to the board was to reject the original bid, but wait and see 

where we are with our finances before a decision is made.  Last year we had an employee live in a camper for over six 

months.  One of the main concerns of prospective employees in affordable housing. Ms. Hooley asked if the district was 

going to draw up a rental agreement, and how would the district handle an employee who does not pay their rent.  Mr. 

Erlebach shared that he visited Jewell School District who has been doing this for a long time, it has worked out very well 

for them.  Mr. Erlebach shared that the need is obviously there, not just for the school district but also for Tillamook 

County. 

 

Ms. Hooley stated that she noticed that the contracts for licensed and classified bargained groups expire in July, Mr. 

Erlebach stated that we are in negotiations with both groups.  We have met with licensed staff three times and classified 

once.  She also mentioned the ending fund balance, which is going from $12,000,000 to just around $8,000,000.  She 

asked if we have any sense for what timber will do.  Mr. Sybouts shared that it is more difficult to get information from 

State Forestry we have received all time high timber revenue payments recently, but there is a downward trend, but not a 

deep downward trend.  Mr. Erlebach stated that the district still plans for a 75 percent property tax revenue and 25 

percent timber revenue.  Mr. Erlebach stated that the Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP) and the Forest Management Plan 

could have an impact on the district. 

 

Mr. Laviolette stated that with regard to the housing, he does not want anyone to misunderstand that he does support the 

teachers, and would like to see a survey of parents before those dollars are spent.  He suggested using the funds to pay 

a stipend to teacher to help with rent.  Mr. Erlebach stated that you could also look at it as an investment.  The district 

does already own the property.  Mr. Wantland stated that he does not see how a duplex could cost $1.6 million dollars. If 

we have a better solution to solve this problem, he would like to hear it.  We have to have something to draw people 

here.  Ms. Fleisher wanted to bring the conversation back to the role of the budget committee. The board has not made a 

decision, they are just looking at going out for bid, they haven’t accepted any money and no money has been spent 

except for design work.  The purpose of the budget committee is to authorize that expenditure and assign a dollar 



Neah-Kah-Nie School District 
Budget Committee Meeting 
April 25, 2022 
Page 4 
 

 

amount to that figure.  It is not its decision to take the board responsibility of approving or denying a project.  It is 

allowing the spending of funding.  Ms. Aeder appreciated what Ms. Fleisher had to say.  She had a conversation with a 

retired teacher from the district who was selling her house, she listed it for $299,000.  She had an open house and 

received a full cash offer of $335,000.  Ms. Aeder stated that she has heard this story over and over again.  She sees 

the need for housing and supports the district’s intentions and does not see a need for another survey.  She stated that 

the Board is elected to make these decisions and believes that there is a level of trust in the communities. 

 

Mr. Laviolette asked what the process is for removing an item from the budget if he does not agree. Should he make a 

motion to remove it.  Mr. Sybouts explained the agenda, and asked that he wait until after the public hearing to allow 

members of the public time to comment.  Mr. Sybouts shared that the budget committee will have another opportunity to 

discuss items within the budget.  Mr. Laviolette also asked about the total projected costs for 22-23 for the HVAC system.  

Mr. Erlebach shared that the initial estimate is approximately $2,000,000 for the high school. Then the district would go 

out for bid to see what the cost would actually be. The elementary schools are in the Capital Improvement Plan, but that 

would be in the future and the board would have to approve a project like that. 

 

Tamara asked if there have been any further discussions about the additional costs associated with renting and managing 

a rental property.  Mr. Erlebach stated that the district is going to manage and handle the maintenance of the property, 

and the rental rate would be the market rate.  He also stated that the building would be for staff, not just teachers.  The 

district does not have to pay property taxes as long as it is rented to a district employee.  We will have a better estimate 

when the bids come back the end of May. Discussion occurred. 

 

Mr. Erlebach explained that Mr. Sybouts can go over a timeline.  Mr. Sybouts stated that we have to approve a budget 

and the board has the authority to not approve the project, it is easier to reduce the budget rather than increase the 

budget.  Ms. Tyrer stated that for right now this is a placeholder until we know what the project will actually cost. 

 

Ms. Luquette stated that if the bids come in higher than the board is comfortable with, the money remains in the general 

fund and increases the ending fund balance.  She applauded the district for being forward thinking with regard to 

workforce housing. 

 

Ms. Mahoney stated that anyone who has ever had any work done on their home knows that while you have a bid the 

work usually comes in higher than expected.  She stated that she is okay with leaving the $1 million in the budget and if 

the bids come in higher than that, the board will have a decision to make.  Ms. Scalabrin agreed, it is up to the board to 

do their due diligence.   

 

Ms. Mahoney also asked about the full-time Art teacher at the middle school.  Mr. Erlebach stated that the middle school 

has changed their schedule.  Before they only had electives at the end of the day and now they are going to have 

electives all day.  Ms. Mahoney also asked about reducing the teaching staff at the elementary schools and how that is 

affecting classified staff.  Mr. Erlebach shared that classified staffing has gone up due to moving the preschool to the 

buildings; the preschools do have two instructional assistants.  Class sizes are going to be around 20 students. Have the 

elementary schools lost classified staff time and do they have enough classified staff to cover all the movements that go 

on in the buildings with the addition of the preschool classrooms?  Ms. Mahoney asked if that was something that we can 

look at.  Mr. Erlebach asked the elementary principals to address classified staff needs.  Ms. Woika stated that she is 

thankful to have extra custodial time, and she feels she has enough classified staff, but they would keep an eye on class 

sizes.  Ms. Nugent shared that having the two IAs in the preschool is great, but she is struggling to cover all the activities 

that go on during the day.  The two custodians has been awesome.  Losing a teacher next year, her class sizes will be 

around 20.6.  Ms. Mahoney asked if there is any way that we can increase classified staff.  Mr. Erlebach stated that we 

will need to watch class sizes. 

 

Mr. Erlebach asked the elementary to report out on the investment of the play structure.  Ms. Woika stated that the play 

structures have been amazing through the pandemic and now that they are in person.  Ms. Nugent agreed with 

everything Ms. Woika stated.  Ms. Scalabrin stated that having a space for children to go play has been a benefit for our 

communities. 



Neah-Kah-Nie School District 
Budget Committee Meeting 
April 25, 2022 
Page 5 
 

 

Ms. Coyle asked about the difference in the beginning fund balance from what was budgeted.  Mr. Sybouts shared that it 

was due to less operating contingency.  She stated that it would be helpful to have a glossary with the budget so that the 

budget committee would know what all the abbreviations mean and how long they are expected to last.  Mr. Erlebach 

stated that several years ago the public voted 5-6 years ago to support $800 per students for career technical education.  

Then 3-4 years ago, the public voted in the corporate tax, which supports the SIA funds.  ESSER grants are COVID 

grants and need to be spent by 2023. 

 

Mr. Wantland asked about the Construction Trades grant, the grant is specifically for that classroom, the Board also 

approve $300,000 to complete that renovation project.  The only space we have for home economics and is not included 

in that grant. He also mention that he is concerned about families having to go back to the application process, he feels 

that we also need more support in special needs classroom.  Mr. Wantland is also concerned about the amount of time 

that the Athletic Director is going to have to work with the athletics and the fact that we are moving up a league. 

 

Ms. Scalabrin asked about the class sizes, what would we need to do if those numbers go up.  Mr. Sybouts stated that it 

could be a transfer from operating contingency by way of a resolution.  Mr. Erlebach stated that he would keep the board 

informed. 

 

OPEN PUBLIC HEARING FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 

Ms. Tyrer opened the public hearing at 9:00 p.m. to hear comments from the public.  Hearing no comments from the 

public hearing was closed at 9:01 p.m. 

 

ADDITIONAL BUDGET COMMITTEE DISCUSSION, Budget Committee 

Mr. Laviolette asked if this is now the time for him to recommend the removal of the $1 million for the housing and the 

$2,000,000 for the HVAC 

 

M-Laviolette/2nd Wantland to remove the $1,000,000 for staff housing from the budget.  Discussion – Ms. Hooley 

asked about the additional date of May 16th on the budget calendar, is that a place holder in case the budget 

committee feels they need another meeting.  Mr. Sybouts stated that is was, but if the budget committee waited 

that long he would have two days to publish the financial summary notice that needs to be published for the 

June board meeting public hearing.  Ms. Tyrer called for a roll call vote: No – Saucedo, Tyrer, Coyle, Wantland, 

Luquette, Fleisher, Scalabrin, Mahoney, Aeder, Mautner, Hooley; Yes – Laviolette.  The motion failed. 

 

M-Laviolette/2nd Wantland to remove the $2,000,000 for the HVAC project from the 2022-2023 budget.  Discussion 

- Ms. Coyle asked if that project is not funded by the ESSER grant.  Mr. Erlebach stated that $1.6 million dollars 

of the $2 million dollars is funded by the ESSER grant; the district would have to pay the additional $400,000.  

Ms. Aeder asked that if we do not approve the HVAC project are we then going to go through the winter with 

windows open again.  Ms. Coyle asked if we do not do the HVAC project, what are the constraints for using that 

money?  Mr. Erlebach stated that the use of these funds it is pretty defined, and must be approved by ODE.  Mr. 

Laviolette stated that we need a group to look at how these funds can be used and encouraged the budget 

committee to research what the ESSER funds can be used for.  Mr. Erlebach read how ESSER funds can be 

used.  Discussion continued. 

 

Roll call vote: No – Mahoney, Scalabrin, Fleisher, Luquette, Coyle, Tyrer, Wantland, Hooley, Mautner, Aeder; Yes 

– Laviolette, Wantland, Saucedo.  Motion failed. 

 

APPROVE CHANGES TO THE BUDGET 

There were no changes recommended to the budget document except that the dates over the last three columns are 

wrong on pages 94 and 102 they have the wrong years.  Mr. Sybouts stated that those dates will be corrected before the 

budget document is adopted. 

 

 

 



Neah-Kah-Nie School District 
Budget Committee Meeting 
April 25, 2022 
Page 6 
 

 

CLOSURE 

 

M-Tyrer/Mahoney to approve the proposed budget, establish the maximum tax levy rate/amount at $4.5002/$1,000 

of assessed valuation for the General Fund, and to establish the maximum Debt Service Fund tax levy amount of 

$1,257,973.  Roll call vote: Yes – Mahoney, Scalabrin, Fleisher, Luquette, Wantland, Coyle, Tyrer, Saucedo, 

Mautner, Hooley, Aeder; No – Laviolette.  Motion carried by a majority of the budget committee. 

 

ADJOURN 

Hearing nothing more to come before the budget committee the meeting adjourned at 9:41 p.m. 

 
















